
 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 14 August 2013 5.30 pm 
Committee Rooms 1-2, City 

Hall 

 
Membership: 
 

 
Councillors Peter West (Chair), Jim Hanrahan (Vice-Chair), 
Bill Bilton, Kathleen Brothwell, Bob Bushell, David Gratrick, 
Gary Hewson, Ronald Hills, Jackie Kirk, Tony Speakman and 
Edmund Strengiel 
 

Substitute members: 
 

Councillors Chris Burke, Jane Clark and Geoff Kirby 
 

Officers attending: 
 

Simon Cousins, Emma Brownless, Mick Albans, Paul Seddon and 
Democratic Services 
 

A G E N D A 

SECTION A Page(s)  

1.  Confirmation of Minutes - 17 July 2013  
 

5 - 8 

2.  Declarations of Interest  
 
Please note that, in accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct, 
when declaring interests members must disclose the existence and 
nature of the interest, and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest 
(DPI) or personal and/or pecuniary. 
 

 

3.  Work to Trees in City Council Ownership  
 

9 - 14 

(a)   Greestone Centre, Lindum Road, Lincoln, LN2 1PF  
 

15 - 142 

(b)   Greestone Centre, Lindum Road, Lincoln, LN2 1PF (LBC)  
 

143 - 146 

(c)   Vicars Court Garages, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LN2 1PT (CAC)  
 

147 - 150 

(d)   Land Adjacent to Park View, St Botolph's Crescent, Lincoln, LN5 
8BJ  
 

151 - 176 

Public Document Pack



 



 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 

 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

FOR PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, CONSERVATION AREA AND ADVERTISEMENT 
APPLICATIONS ON THE AGENDA OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
 

The Background Papers for the Planning, Listed Building, Conservation Area and 
Advertisement Applications are: 
 
1. The appropriate Planning Information Folder: This is a file with the same reference 

number as that shown on the Agenda for the Application. It contains the following 
documents: 
 
(a) the application forms; 
(b) plans of the proposed development; 
(c) site plans; 
(d) certificate relating to ownership of the site; 
(e) consultation letters and replies to and from statutory consultees and bodies; 
(f) letters and documents from interested parties; 
(g) memoranda of consultation and replies to and from Departments of the Council. 
 

2. Any previous Planning Information Folders referred to in the Reports on the Agenda for 
the particular application or in the Planning Information Folder specified above. 
 

3. City of Lincoln Local Plan: Adopted 26 August 1998. 
 

4. The emerging draft Local Development Framework is now a material consideration. 
 

5. Lincolnshire Structure Plan – Final Modifications 3 January 2006 
 

6. Regional Spatial Strategy – 17 March 2005 
 

7. Applications which have Background Papers additional to those specified in 1 to 6 
above set out in the following table.  These documents may be inspected at the 
Planning Reception, City Hall, Beaumont Fee, Lincoln. 

 
APPLICATIONS WITH ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND PAPERS (See 7 above.) 
 
Application No.:  Additional Background Papers 



 

CRITERIA FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE SITE VISITS (AGREED BY DC COMMITTEE ON 
21 JUNE 2006 AND APPROVED BY FULL COUNCIL ON 15 AUGUST 2006) 
 
 
Criteria: 
 

• Applications which raise issues which are likely to require detailed first hand knowledge 
of the site and its surroundings to enable a well-informed decision to be taken and the 
presentational material at Committee would not provide the necessary detail or level of 
information. 

 

• Major proposals which are contrary to Local Plan policies and proposals but which have 
significant potential benefit such as job creation or retention, environmental 
enhancement, removal of non-confirming uses, etc. 

 

• Proposals which could significantly affect the city centre or a neighbourhood by reason 
of economic or environmental impact. 

 

• Proposals which would significantly affect the volume or characteristics of road traffic in 
the area of a site. 

 

• Significant proposals outside the urban area. 
 

• Proposals which relate to new or novel forms of development. 
 

• Developments which have been undertaken and which, if refused permission, would 
normally require enforcement action to remedy the breach of planning control. 

 

• Development which could create significant hazards or pollution. 
 
 
So that the targets for determining planning applications are not adversely affected by the 
carrying out of site visits by the Committee, the request for a site visit needs to be made as 
early as possible and site visits should be restricted to those matters where it appears 
essential.   
 
A proforma is available for all Members.  This will need to be completed to request a site visit 
and will require details of the application reference and the reason for the request for the site 
visit.  It is intended that Members would use the proforma well in advance of the consideration 
of a planning application at Committee.  It should also be used to request further or additional 
information to be presented to Committee to assist in considering the application.   



Planning Committee 17 July 2013 

 
Present: Councillor Peter West (in the Chair),  

Councillor Bill Bilton, Councillor Kathleen Brothwell, 
Councillor Bob Bushell, Councillor Gary Hewson, 
Councillor Ronald Hills, Councillor Jackie Kirk, Councillor 
Edmund Strengiel, Councillor Neil Murray and Councillor 
Fay Smith 
 

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Jim Hanrahan, Councillor David Gratrick and 
Councillor Tony Speakman 
 

 
16.  Confirmation of Minutes - 26 June 2013  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2013 be confirmed. 
 

17.  Declarations of Interest  
 

No declarations of interest were received. 
 

18.  Application for Development: Greestone Centre, Lindum Road, Lincoln, LN2 
1PF  

 
The Development Services Manager referred to the update sheet circulated at 
tonight’s meeting. He requested that this agenda item be deferred to enable 
outstanding issues to be resolved before the application be formally considered at 
the Planning Committee meeting to be held on 14 August 2013. 
 
A motion was moved and seconded that this item be deferred to enable 
outstanding issues to be resolved before the application be formally considered at 
the Planning Committee meeting to be held on 14 August 2013.  
 
The motion was put to the vote and carried. 
 
RESOLVED that this item be deferred to enable outstanding issues to be 
resolved before the application be formally considered at the Planning Committee 
meeting to be held on 14 August 2013. 
 

19.  Application for Development: Land to the Rear of 17-37 and Between 39-41 
Victoria Street Lincoln LN1 1HY  

 
The Development Services Manager: 
 

a. advised that the application proposed the erection of 8 terraced dwellings 
on land to the rear of 17 – 37 Victoria Street, and one, two storey dwelling 
between 39 – 41 Victoria Street; the majority of the site sat between 
Motherby Hill to the east and the established terraces of Victoria Street to 
the west with Clara Terrace to the south 
 

b. reported that the site had been vacant for some considerable time, 
although previously it had accommodated a row of terraced properties 
demolished in the 1960s; the area proposed as car parking did however 
accommodate a row of dilapidated timber garages although Conservation 
Consent was currently in place to demolish these; the site also formed part 

Item No. 1

5



of the Cathedral and City Centre Conservation Area No.1 and a Scheduled 
Ancient Monument (SAM); being adjacent to a Roman Wall and ditch 
  

c. provided details of the policies pertaining to the application as follows: 
 

• Policy 34: Design and Amenity Standards 

• Policy 56A: New Housing (Self-Contained) 

• National Planning Policy Framework 
o Chapter 4: Promoting Sustainable Transport 
o Chapter 6: Delivering a Wide Choice of Quality Homes 
o Chapter 7: Requiring Good Design 
o Chapter 12: Conserving and Enhancing the Historic 

Environment 

• Linking Lincoln: City Centre Masterplan 

• Lincoln Townscape Assessment 
 

d. outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise 
 

e. referred to the update sheet which included an additional consultation 
response received in respect of the application 
 

f. advised members of the issues to be considered in respect of the 
application as follows: 
 

• The principle of development in relation to planning policy 

• The impact of the proposal on the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area and visual amenity 

• Residential amenity 

• Access, parking and highway safety 

• Land stability and archaeology 
 

g. concluded that: 
 

• This development was a carefully designed scheme which dutifully 
respected its context whilst also introducing an element of 
contemporary design.  

• The effect on neighbours had been well considered and minimised 
and the elements of access, slope stability and archaeology had 
also been addressed.  

• Importantly, the proposal was the same as that previously approved 
by Planning Committee in 2006, and there had been no discernable 
change in terms of the site itself. National Policy had however been 
updated since that time and he was satisfied that the proposal was 
in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework.  

• The proposal represented a good use for this vacant brown field 
site, and would therefore accord with local and national planning 
policy.  

 
Members considered the content of the report in further detail, asked questions 
and received relevant responses from officers as follows: 
 

• The planning application had lapsed 7 years ago; was this not too 
long a period of time for it to remain a material consideration in the 
determination of this application? 

6



• Officer response: The planning application had indeed lapsed, 
however the planning authority could not force developers to build 
houses within a certain time limit. 

• The report referred to use of screen fences to the rear gardens of 
the new houses, however there was no reference to this 
requirement within the proposed conditions for grant of the planning 
application?  

• Officer response: The proposed condition relating to boundary 
treatment covered the requirement to install screen fencing to the 
rear of the new houses. 

• Would the height of the fences each side of the properties cause 
observational problems? 

• Officer response:  Detail of boundary treatment was a condition of 
the grant of the application. The fences would be designed at a 
height of approximately 1.5 metres which would not be sufficient 
enough to cause issues in terms of security to the adjoining 
footpaths.  

• How many bedrooms would each property contain? 

• Officer response: The build would consist of 2 and 3 bedroomed 
properties. 

• Were there any issues in relation to land stability and potential 
damage to existing buildings during construction work? 

• Officer response: Any issues relating to land stability were a matter 
to be resolved between the developers and the owners of existing 
properties. However, the planning authority would do everything 
within its power to make sure any land stability issues were 
addressed before development commenced; through the imposition 
of archaeological conditions and the requirement for detailed 
foundation design. 

 
RESOLVED that the application be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 

• Standard years and plans 

• Materials/detailing 

• Boundary treatments 

• Levels 

• Landscaping 

• Surfacing  

• Slope stability analysis, foundation design and details of existing and 
proposed retaining structures 

• Removal of PD rights for all properties 

• Retention of car park layout 

• Design details for highway works 

• Archaeological condition 

• Construction Management Plan 

• Reporting of any unsuspected contamination. 
 
 

 
 

 
 

7



8

This page is intentionally blank.



 
 
                        
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

           
    14 AUGUST 2013  

 
 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
WORK TO TREES IN CITY COUNCIL OWNERSHIP 

REPORT BY: 
 

DIRECTOR OF HOUSING & COMMUNITY SERVICES 

LEAD OFFICER STEVE BIRD – ASSISTANT DIRECTOR COMMUNITY  
SERVICES & STREET SCENE 
 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To advise Members of the reasons for proposed works to trees in City Council 

ownership, and to seek consent to progress the works identified. 
 

1.2 This list does not represent all the work undertaken to Council trees. It is all the 
instances where a tree is either identified for removal, or where a tree enjoys 
some element of protection under planning legislation, and thus formal consent 
is required. 
 

2. Background 
 

2.1 In accordance with the accepted policy, Committee’s views are sought in respect 
of proposed works to trees in City Council ownership, see Appendix A. 
 

2.2 The responsibility for the management of any given tree is determined by the 
ownership responsibilities of the land on which it stands. Trees within this 
schedule are therefore on land owned by the Council, with management 
responsibilities distributed according to the purpose of the land. 
 

3. Tree Assessment 
 

3.1 All tree cases are brought to this committee only after careful consideration and 
assessment by the Council’s Arboricultural Officer (together with independent 
advice where considered appropriate). 
 

3.2 All relevant Ward Councillors are notified of the proposed works for their 
respective wards prior to the submission of this report.                                  

3.3 Although the Council strives to replace any tree that has to be removed, in some 
instances it is not possible or desirable to replant a tree in either the exact 
location or of the same species. In these cases a replacement of an appropriate 
species is scheduled to be planted in an appropriate location within the vicinity. 
Tree planting is normally scheduled for the winter months following the removal. 
 
 
 

Item No. 3

9



4. Resource Implications 
 

4.1 i) Finance 
 
The costs of any tree works arising from this report will be borne by the existing 
budgets. There are no other financial implications, capital or revenue.  
 

4.2 ii) Staffing   N/A 
  

4.3 iii) Property/Land/ Accommodation Implications      N/A 
 

4.4 iv) Procurement 
      
All works arising from this report are undertaken by the Council’s grounds 
maintenance contractor. The contractor was appointed after an extensive 
competitive tendering exercise, ensuring that staff are all suitably trained, 
qualified, and experienced. The contract for this work was let in April 2006. 
 

5. Policy Implications 
 

5.1 (i) Strategic Priority                       N/A 
 

5.2 (ii) S.17 Crime and Disorder         N/A 
 

5.3 (iii) Equality and Diversity             N/A 
 

5.4 (iv) Environmental Sustainability   
  
The Council acknowledges the importance of trees and tree planting to the 
environment and its biodiversity objectives. Replacement trees are routinely 
scheduled wherever a tree has to be removed, in line with Council policy. 
 

5.5 (v) Community Engagement/Communication   N/A 
 

6. Consultation and Communication     
  

6.1 All ward Councillors are informed of proposed works on this schedule, which are 
within their respective ward boundaries. 
 

6.2 The relevant portfolio holders are advised in advance in all instances where, in 
the judgement of officers, the matters arising within the report are likely to be 
sensitive or contentious. 
 

7. Legal Implications 
 

7.1 (i) Legal 
 
The City Council has a legal obligation to ensure that trees in Council             
ownership are maintained in a safe condition. Trees may be protected by the law 
in certain instances. Situations where this applies are normally in relation to 
planning legislation covering Conservation Areas, and Tree Preservation Orders. 
Where there is legal protection for a tree or trees, this is identified clearly in the 
appendices. 

10



 
7.2 (ii) Contractual     

 
See 4.4 above. 
 

8. Assessment of Options 
 

8.1 (i) Key Issues      
 
The work identified on the attached schedule represents the Arboricultural 
Officers advice to the Council relevant to the specific situation identified. This is 
a balance of assessment pertaining to the health of the tree, its environment, 
and any legal or health and safety concerns. In all instances the protection of 
the public is taken as paramount. Deviation from the recommendations for any 
particular situation may carry ramifications. These can be outlined by the 
Arboricultural Officer pertinent to any specific case.  
 

8.2 (ii)  Risk Assessment  
 
Where appropriate, the recommended actions within the schedule have been 
subject to a formal risk assessment. Failure to act on the recommendations of 
the Arboricultural Officer could leave the Council open to allegations that it has 
not acted responsibly in the discharge of its legal responsibilities. 
 

9. Recommendation 
 

9.1 That the works set out in the attached schedules be approved. 
 

Access to Information: 
Does the report contain 
exempt information, which 
would prejudice the public 
interest requirement if it 
was publicised? 
 

 
No 

Key Decision No 
 

Key Decision Reference 
No. 
 

                                           N/A 

Do the Exempt 
Information Categories 
Apply 
 

No 

Call In and Urgency: I s 
the decision one to which 
Rule 15 of the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules apply? 
 

 
No 

List of Background 
Papers: 
 

Section file Te 623 

Lead Officer:  Mr S. Bird,  
Assistant Director Community Services & Street Scene. 
Telephone 873421 
 

11



 

 

NOTIFICATION OF INTENDED WORK TO TREES AND HEDGES 

RELEVANT TO THEIR CITY COUNCIL OWNERSHIP STATUS. 

SCHEDULE No 8 / SCHEDULE DATE: 14/08/13 

 
 

Item 
No 

Status 
e.g. 
CAC 

Specific 
Location  

Tree Species 
and description 
/ reasons for 
work / Ward. 
 

Recommendation 

1 N/A City Square, 
adjacent to 
Wilkinson’s Stores 

Abbey Ward 
1 Beech. 
Fell, the tree is dying. 

 

Approve and replant with a 
Beech. 

2 N/A Front garden of 30 
Tower Drive. 

Abbey Ward 
1 Lime, 
Fell, the tree is being 
suppressed by 2 other 
Limes growing 
adjacent to it. 
 
 

Approve and replant with a 
Lime in a suitable location. 

3 N/A Land to rear of 23 
East Liberty. 

Abbey Ward 
2 Cypress trees. 
Fell, to prevent 
damage to property. 

 

Approve and replant with 2 
Beeches in a suitable 

location. 

4 N/A Rear garden of 83 
Tower Crescent. 

Abbey Ward 
2 Self-set Sycamores. 
Fell due to decay at 
base of trees. 
 

 

Approve and replant with 2 
Cherry trees in a suitable 

location. 

5 N/A Rear garden of 65 
Bawtry Close. 

Birchwood Ward 
1 Oak. 
Fell, the main stem is 
splitting. 

 

Approve and replant with 
an Oak. 

6 N/A Land to rear of 12 
Keadby Close 

Boultham Ward 
1 Beech. 
Fell, the tree has shed 
limbs and has decay 
to main stem. 

 
 

Approve and replant with a 
Beech. 

7 CAC St Mary Magdalene 
Churchyard. 

Castle Ward 
1 Sycamore. 
Fell, to prevent further 
damage to property. 
 
 
 

Approve and replant with a 
Maple in a suitable location 

within the churchyard. 

12



8 N/A Land adjacent to 
325 Wragby Road 

Glebe Ward 
1 Sycamore. 
Fell, due to decay in 
the main stem. 
 

Approve and replant with a 
Maple. 

9 N/A Land adjacent to 
10/12 Outer Circle 
Drive 

Glebe Ward 
1 Cherry. 
Fell due to decay in 
main stem. 
 

Approve and replant with a 
Cherry. 

10 TPO Link path to rear of 
45 Sycamore 
Crescent 

Hartsholme Ward 
1 multi-stemmed 
Willow. 
Fell, as the stems are 
splitting. 
1 Multi-stemmed 
Birch. 
Prune to shape crown. 
 

Approve and replant with a 
Field Maple. 

11 N/A Verge outside 17 St 
Peter’s Avenue 

Moorland Ward 
1 Maple. 
Fell, decay in base 
and root system. 
 

Approve and replant with a 
Maple. 

 

13



14

This page is intentionally blank.



 

Site: Greestone Centre, Lindum Road, Lincoln, LN2 1PF 

Application No: 2013/0391/F 

Target Date:  

Agent: John Roberts Architects Ltd. 

Applicant: Mr Simon Plummer 

Development:  Erection of a part 2 storey part 3 storey building with glazed link 
to Greestone Building to facilitate a University Technical College, 
and installation of glazed screen to south elevation of Greestone 
Building. 

 
 
Background 
 
The Greestone Centre on Lindum Road comprises several buildings that are currently 
occupied by the Art faculty of the University of Lincoln. The buildings comprise the 
Greestone Building (Grade II listed), a 1950s workshop extension to the rear and two 
smaller free standing classroom buildings to the west facing towards Temple Gardens and 
the Usher Gallery to the west. 
 
It is proposed to use the site, which is to be vacated shortly by the University, to establish a 
University Technical College and in so doing to refurbish and make minor modifications to 
the Greestone Building, demolish the 1950s workshop to the rear and build a new three 
storey building to provide further teaching space and to remodel the parking, landscaping 
and access to the site from Lindum Road. There are associated but separate applications 
for Listed Building Consent to deal with the alterations to the Greestone Building and 
Conservation Area Consent to deal with the demolition of garages on the north side of the 
site which will be replaced as part of the application before the Council for planning 
permission. 
 
The University Technical College (UTC) is a partnership with the University of Lincoln, 
Lincoln College and Siemens and would provide education to pupils aged 14 – 19 with a 
full time, technically orientated course that will specialise in Engineering and Science.  
 
The buildings already benefit from an educational use and could be occupied as they stand 
as a school or free school without the need for planning permission and without any of the 
controls that a planning permission could provide. The application for planning permission 
deals with the minor external works to the Greestone Building and most pertinently, the 
demolition of the existing workshop to the rear and the erection of a new two and three 
storey building to replace it. The access to this part of the site for the demolition and the 
building works is proposed from Greestone Place to the north and east of the site and the 
works will involve the excavation of material beneath the existing workshop in order to 
provide the amount of accommodation needed for the proposal. 
 
Site Visit 
 
Undertaken on 20th June 2013 with members of the Planning Committee to allow a 
familiarisation with the site. In addition officers have met with the applicants at pre-
application stage and during the course of the application. 
 
 

Item No. 4a

15



 

 
Issues 
 
The proposal for a University Technical College in Lincoln is a positive benefit for the City in 
terms of the educational opportunities that it will provide for the local area and in terms of 
the potential for future growth and economic development. The specifics of the application 
site raise the issues which are pertinent to the consideration of this application for planning 
permission in terms of the high quality architectural and historic context and in terms of 
access to the site both during construction and also when the college is operational. 
 
The application proposes development on the historic hillside south of Lincoln Cathedral – 
described by English Heritage as being “part of the most important historic landscape in the 
East Midlands.” The site is also surrounded by a number of designated heritage assets and 
also lies within the Cathedral and City Centre Conservation Area. It is also close to areas 
protected by scheduling and whilst the site itself is not scheduled the location means that 
there is potential for the survival of archaeological remains on the site. The Greestone 
Building is situated on the north side of Lindum Road and the access to the site is and will 
be taken from this location. Access for construction traffic to the workshop to be 
demolished and to the site for the construction of the new two and three storey building 
proposed in its place, the new extension, is only available from Greestone Place to the 
north east of the site, a narrow road which then leads out into Minster Yard. 
 
The main issues therefore raised by the proposal are as follows: 
 

• Planning Policy 
 

• Environmental Impact Assessment 
 

• The suitability of this site, in principle, for a University Technical College taking into 
account the site specific issues: 

 
a) Demolition of the existing workshop and the excavation and groundworks needed 
for the new building 
b) The design of the new building 
c) The impact of the proposal on the setting of the surrounding designated heritage 
assets and the longer views of the historic hillside 
d) Impact on residential amenity 
e) Construction access 
f) Travel, traffic and access management following the opening of the UTC 
g) Protected Species survey 

 

• The material public benefits of the proposal 
 
Policies Referred to 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) paragraphs: 7, 17,56,109, 128, 131, 132, 134 
and 139 
City of Lincoln Local Plan (1998) Policies: 18, 34, 89A – saved policies. 
Central Lincolnshire Local Plan Draft Core Strategy – this document, which will form part 
of the Development Plan, attracts increasing weight as it progresses towards Examination 
and adoption. Relevant policies include CL17 – Delivering Prosperity and Jobs and CL23 - 
A Quality Environment. The draft plan identifies Lincoln as the principal focus in Central 

16



 

Lincolnshire for new development. Policy L4  - Employment Priorities in the Lincoln Area 
states that “The Central Lincolnshire Authorities will work with their partners and other 
stakeholders to strengthen, broaden and grow the economy of the Lincoln area�..(and) 
The Local plan will support the following sectors�. 

• Spcialist engineering and manufacture�. 

• Tourism and cultural industries�.. 

• Knowledge economy�” 
 
Consultations 
 
Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community 
Involvement, adopted June 2006. 
  
In addition the applicants undertook an initial consultation with local residents before the 
application was submitted. 
Copies of the representations are attached to this report and in summary the main issues 
raised are as follows: 
 

• This site is not suitable for the use proposed or for the new building proposed 
 

• Construction access will be difficult and disruptive 
 

• The modern design of the building is not suitable – it is too high and unsympathetic 
 

• The materials are not suitable 
 

• The site is archaeologically important and insufficient attention has been given to 
this  

 

• The site will be difficult to access when it opens as the UTC – Lindum Road is very 
busy and crossing it will be difficult and dangerous 

 

• Students will use Greestone Place – they will be dropped off and picked up by 
parents and will use it during the day causing harm to the amenity of local residents 

 

• The hours of work for construction should be controlled 
 

• The UTC would be better located at Teal Park 
 

• There are no proposals for the Tithe Barn 
 

• Letters of support have also been received from the main sponsors setting out the 
benefits of the UTC for Lincoln and the suitability of this site. 

 
Responses 
 
David & Hilary Bower 4 Vicars Court 

Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN2 1PT 

Objection 

   

17



 

The Dean and Chapter of Lincoln Chapter Office 
4 Priory Gate 
Lincoln 
LN2 1PL 

Support 

Mr & Mrs Andrews 3 Vicars Court 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN2 1PT 

Objection 

Dr Peter Burman  39/1F Drummond Place  
Edinburgh  
EH3 6NR  

Objection 

Mr & Mrs Whitton Greestone House 
Greestone Place 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN2 1PP 

Objection 

Colin & Susan Leakey 5 Minster Yard 
Lincoln 
LN2 1PJ 

Objection 

Adam Hanlon  6 Gresham Street 
Lincoln 
LN1 1QA 

Comment 

Sills & Betteridge 46 Silver Street 
Lincoln 
LN2 1ED 

Objection 

Professor Mary Stuart  University Of Lincoln 
Brayford Pool  
Lincoln  
LN6 7TS 

Support 

Professor Andrew Hunter University of Lincoln 
Brayford Pool  
Lincoln  
LN6 7TS 

Support 

Paul A Birt Siemens 
PO BOX 1 
Waterside South 
Lincoln 
LN5 7FD 

Support 

simon simon.whitton@farmshop.uk.com Comments 
P N Dixon 2 Vicars Court 

Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN2 1PT 

Objection 

The Lord Cormack  15 Minster Yard  
Lincoln 
LN2 1PW 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Objection 

18



 

Mrs Jennifer Wenham Whitton  Greestone House 
Greestone Place 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN2 1PP 

Objection 

Ralph Wyrley Birch  2 Greestone Place 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN2 1PP 

Objection 

David & Angela Birchall  2 Greestone Terrace 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN2 1PR 

Objection 

J C Slingsby 3 Greestone Place 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN2 1PP 

Objection 

E A Slingsby 3 Greestone Place 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN2 1PP 

Objection 

Simon & Dawn Whitton Greestone House 
Greestone Place 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN2 1PP 

Objection 

Colin and Susan Leakey 5 Minster Yard 
Lincoln 
LN2 1PJ 

Objection 

Mr Whitton Greestone House 
Greestone Place 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN2 1PP 

Objection 

Lincoln Civic Trust St Mary`s Guildhall 
385 High Street 
Lincoln 
LN5 7RY 

Objection 

Richard Lucas 14 James Street 
Lincoln 
LN2 1QE 

Objection 

Mr M Withers Greestone Holme 
3 Greestone Terrace 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN2 1PR 

Objection 

English Heritage East Midlands Region 
44 Derngate 
Northampton 
NN1 1UH 
 
 

Comment 

19



 

Revd Canon John Patrick Lincoln Cathedral  
The Subdeanery  
18 Minster Yard  
Lincoln 
LN2 1PX 

Comments 

Highways & Planning Lincolnshire County Council Comments 
Mr R Wyrley-Birch 2 Greestone Terrace 

Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN2 1PR 

Objection 

 

 
Consideration 
 
1. Planning Policy 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the Government’s planning 
policies for England and how these are expected to be applied. The NPPF states that the 
purpose of the planning system is to contribute to sustainable development and goes on to 
explain (para.7) that there are three dimensions to sustainable development: economic, 
social and environmental. These dimensions give rise for the need for the planning system 
to perform a number of roles: 
 

• An economic role – contributing to building a strong, responsive and competitive 
economyK. 

• A social role – supporting strong, vibrant and healthy communitiesKKand by 
creating a high quality built environmentK 

• An environmental role – contributing to protecting and enhancing our natural, built 
and historic environmentK. 

 
The NPPF at paragraph 17 sets out 12 core planning principles that should underpin plan 
making and decision taking. These 12 principles are that planning should: 
 

• Be genuinely plan ledK; 
• Not simply be about scrutiny, but instead be a creative exercise in finding ways to 

enhance and improve the places in which people live their lives; 
• Proactively drive and support sustainable economic development to deliver the 

homes, business and industrial units, infrastructure and thriving local places that the 
country needsK; 

• Always seek to secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all 
existing and future occupants of land and buildings; 

• Take account of the different roles and character of different areas, promoting the 
vitality of our main urban areasK; 

• Support the transition to a low carbon future in a changing climateK; 
• Contribute to conserving and enhancing the natural environment and reducing 

pollutionK; 
• Encourage the effective use of land by reusing land that has been previously 

developed (brownfield land), provided that it is not of high environmental value; 
• Promote mixed use developmentsK; 
• Conserve heritage assets in a manner appropriate to their significanceK; 
• Actively manage patterns of growth to make the fullest possible use of public 

transport, walking and cycling, and focus significant development in locations which 
are or can be made to be sustainable; and 

• Take account of and support local strategies to improve health, social and cultural 
wellbeing for allK 

 
The majority of these principles are relevant to a lesser or greater degree to the 
consideration of this application before the Council.  
 

20



 

The more specific paragraphs within the NPPF will be referred to as the issues raised by 
the proposal are set out below. 
 
The City of Lincoln Local Plan – adopted in 1998 still forms part of the Development Plan 
for the City. The site is within the allocated central mixed use area (Policy18) and part of 
the site also falls within the identified Education Development District (Policy 89A.) The use 
of the site for educational purposes therefore accords with the Development Plan. Policy 34 
deals with Design and Amenity Standards, reflecting the requirements in the NPPF that 
new buildings should respect their context and not cause harm to the amenities which local 
residents might reasonably expect to continue to enjoy.  
 
2. Environmental Impact Assessment 
 
Due to the nature of the proposed development the Local Planning Authority considers this 
application to fall within Schedule 2 under the Town and Country Planning (Environmental 
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011 which requires the Local Planning Authority to make 
its own formal determination of whether or not an Environmental Impact Assessment is 
required. In making this determination the Local Planning Authority must issue a Screening 
Opinion taking into account the relevant 'selection criteria' in Schedule 3 of the Regulations. 
The Local Planning Authority has determined that the issues raised by the application are 
not of a scale or of an impact that would necessitate an Environmental Impact Assessment.  
The application does raise a number of issues that will need careful consideration but it is 
appropriate and proportionate that these impacts should be addressed through the process 
of the relevant applications themselves. The screening opinion was made available for 
public inspection on 27th June 2013 and subsequently on the 1st August 2013 when a 
revised version was issued. 
  
The Screening Opinion has been revised to take into account the updated information 
relating to the Written Scheme of Investigation which was required to alleviate the concerns 
of English Heritage. It has also provided an opportunity to clarify the matters taken into 
consideration by the decision-maker when concluding that there are no likely significant 
and material environmental effects anticipated as a result of the proposed development. 
 
3. Consideration of the Suitability of the Site for the Proposed Development  
 
 

a) Demolition of the existing workshop and the excavation and groundworks associated 
with the new extension 
 
The workshop to be demolished to the rear of the Greestone Building was built in the 
early 1950s and is of no particular significance. It is a functional building which is 
largely hidden from view behind the wall which bounds the site on Greestone Place 
and the garages which are also proposed for demolition on the northern boundary of 
the site. There is general agreement that the building is of no merit and there is 
therefore no objection in principle to its demolition. 
 
The new extension proposed on this part of the site will have a larger footprint than 
the existing building and will be built over three floors, the lower floor being dug into 
the hillside. This will necessitate the creation of an envelope of contiguous piles 
around the west, north and east of the site and then the excavation of material from 
the site to form the area for construction of the new building. The site is not 
scheduled, unlike much of the hillside of this part of the City but English Heritage has 
nonetheless advised, in their letter dated 5th July 2013, that an acceptable strategy 
for mitigating impacts on potentially significant archaeology should be developed. 
They further advise that “the archaeology on the hillside is of the highest 
significance, as illustrated by the scheduled monuments (in the vicinity of the site), 
and there is clear potential for the survival of archaeological remains on the site of 
the proposed new extension of equivalent importance to those protected by 
Scheduling in nearby areas of the City.” 

21



 

 
The applicants have appointed archaeological contractors who have undertaken 
investigations to the west the site of the new extension and they have developed a 
methodology for mitigating the impact of the development on the potential 
archaeology. This methodology, in the form a Written Scheme of Archaeological 
Investigation and a Mitigation Strategy sets out the process for dealing with 
archaeology and providing the appropriate timescales within which to do so. English 
Heritage have made comments on this document suggesting that further scope is 
included and seeking additional clarification. The applicant has subsequently 
updated the document in line with all of the comments raised and its conclusions 
have been agreed with the Heritage Team. At the time of writing this report English 
Heritage have yet to issue any formal comments on this revised document, and any 
observations received in the intervening period shall be reported at the meeting. 
 
The groundworks in terms of the contiguous piles have been designed by a 
Structural Engineer with a detailed understanding of Lincoln’s hillside.  
 
The demolition of the garages on the northern boundary of the site are the subject of 
a separate application for Conservation Area Consent and, being in the ownership of 
the Dean and Chapter, have also been the subject of an application to the 
Cathedrals Fabric Commission for England which has been approved. This is a 
process entirely separate from the applications to the Local Planning Authority. The 
demolition is necessary to give access to the application site and will also involve the 
demolition of part of the stone wall and gate piers on the western side of Greestone 
Place, which will be rebuilt following the construction of the new extension. There is 
no objection to this element of the works.  
 

b) The design of the new building and the external alterations to the Greestone Building 
 

The new extension has been designed to provide a level of floorspace that meets 
the requirements of the UTC for teaching and work space and the final design before 
the Council has been developed from an initial concept and the consideration of 
various options to arrive at the proposal to be considered for planning permission. 
The new extension will be built over three floors with the middle or ground floor at 
approximately the same level as the ground floor of the existing workshop. A floor of 
accommodation is provided beneath this ground floor and the further 
accommodation is provided at the first floor. Options have been considered which 
provided a second floor of accommodation but this did not sit comfortably with the 
surrounding context and neither did an option of roofing the new building with a pitch 
roof, which would be particularly high and visible at some distance.  
 
The NPPF paragraph 56 states that “good design is a key aspect of sustainable 
development, is indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to 
making places better for people.”  
 
The proposal is of a contemporary design, carefully modelled to deal with the scale 
and the massing in a manner which reflects the tapestry of development on the 
historic hillside. It will be clad in stone of two contrasting textures – Ancaster 
weatherbed limestone of a similar finish to that used successfully at the Collection 
and also Dura stone which gives a very smooth ashlar type finish; both of these 
materials are of high quality and reflect the predominance of stone as a facing 
material within the upper parts of the hillside. The building will have shallow pitched 
roofs clad on terne coated steel with batten rolls, a material increasingly being 
approved for use on churches which have had traditional lead roofing.  
 
The application originally proposed to clad the building in buff brickwork and a 
copper coloured rainscreen type cladding but this was not considered to be of 
sufficient quality for a building of this type in this location.  
 

22



 

Within the site there will be a bridge connecting the Greestone Building with the new 
extension, in a similar location to the existing bridge. This new bridge will provide 
better more level access between the two buildings, spanning the Close Wall which 
is located between them. The design of the bridge is simple and does not detract 
from the setting of the listed building or from the Close Wall. It would not be visible 
from outside the site. 
 
The garages to the north of the site will be rebuilt in a buff facing brick and it is 
considered appropriate that these functional buildings should not be of the same 
materials as the proposed new extension. 
 
The overall design is contemporary but what is proposed is a building to serve as 
part of a new University Technical College and as such a design of the 21st century 
is an appropriate approach. The building does however sit within an important 
context, which must be respected and the use of natural stone will reflect that 
context. The scale of the building is suitable for the context, Greestone Place 
historically and currently having a high level of enclosure along its western side. The 
impact of the building on Greestone Place and the surrounding area is limited by 
presenting only two storeys above ground height and the nature of the design that 
sets the upper floor back from Greestone Place. Views of the building will therefore 
be limited but nonetheless is an inherent quality to the design that justifies its siting 
in this part of the City. 
 
The external alterations to the Greestone Building and its setting are limited to the 
installation of a glazed screen on the southern elevation of the building and then 
alterations to the car parking and servicing areas to the front of the building and the 
alterations and modifications to the landscaping that will serve to enhance the 
setting of the building. 
 
English Heritage has suggested a reduction in the pitch of the roof at the western 
end of the building and following these comments the applicant has lowered the roof 
at the end of the building by approximately 220mm. The applicants architect has 
stated that to lower the roof any further would compromise the weatherproofing to 
the parapets of the structure. It has also been suggested that the shape of the 
building is modified to avoid an area where it projects over the Close Wall that 
separates the site of the new extension from the Greestone Building. The Close Wall 
is not publicly visible at this point and the projection is relatively minor and at a high 
level relative to the wall meaning that the enclosure that the wall provides is still 
easily read. For these reasons I am not convinced that this change is necessary or 
justified. 
 

c) The impact of the new extension on the setting of the surrounding designated 
heritage assets and on longer views of the historic hillside 
 
English Heritage has advised that they consider that “the proposed scheme will have 
an impact on the significance and setting of Lincoln Cathedral, the medieval 
Bishop’s Palace and nearby designated heritage assets, particularly long views of 
the historic hillside from the south, in views towards the site from the medieval 
Bishop’s Palace and in views along Greestone Place and from adjacent houses.” 
 
Views of the site from Temple Gardens are largely obscured by trees and part of the 
Greestone Building. The NPPF states that when considering the impact of a 
proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great 
weight should be given to its conservation (para 132) 
 
The consideration of the impact cited by English Heritage must therefore be made 
very carefully and the applicants have produced several images to quantify the 
potential impact. Long views of the site are not easy because the Greestone Building 
with its steeply pitched roof, together with the limited size that the proposed 
extension presents to the surrounding area, means that the site is not visible from 

23



 

the south except from points such as Pelham Bridge and then more distantly from 
the top of the south common close to Canwick. Views from the latter location are of 
the general tapestry of development on the hillside and individual buildings are not 
easily discernable – the use of natural stone for the new extension means that the 
development would fit into this tapestry and not be prominent or otherwise 
remarkable. Views from Pelham Bridge have been assessed by the applicants and 
the photomontage produced shows that there is a small part of the building visible 
but again the use of natural stone limits any impact to an extent that could not be 
described as harmful. The applicant has been asked to provide solid validation for 
the photomontage and subject to this being provided then the impact of the proposal 
on long views of the hillside will be very limited indeed. 
 
Views of the site are possible from part of the Medieval Bishops Palace but, as 
English Heritage has noted, the impact on such views “will be significantly reduced 
by the use of stone facing materials.” Views of the site from Greestone Place and 
the adjoining houses will be the closest views of the new building and it is important 
to ensure that the stone and the use of the stone is carried out to the highest 
standard. The high level of enclosure on the west side of Greestone Place limits 
views of the new extension and whilst it will be visible from the upper floors of some 
of these houses that view does not in itself constitute harm. The building is set back 
at its upper floor from Greestone Place by between 5 and 10 metres which again 
means that the impact on properties on the eastern side of Greestone Place is 
limited to an extent that could not be considered to be harmful. 
 
The new extension is separated from the listed Tithe Barn to the north by the garage 
court which is to be demolished and rebuilt and it will be of two storeys on its 
northern boundary and so more visible from the Tithe Barn and from the garage 
court access to Vicar’s Court than is the existing workshop. However the use of 
natural stone in the facing of the new extension and its limited height relative to the 
Tithe Barn means that any impact on the setting of this listed building is moderated 
and does not cause harm to the setting of the Tithe Barn or to Vicars Court. 
 
The impact on the setting of Vicars Court to the north and west of the site is limited. 
The Tithe Barn will obscure views of the new extension from Vicars Court and whilst 
there will be a view of the west elevation of the new extension from 3 and 3a Vicars 
Court this is an oblique view from the south facing windows of these properties and 
there will be no harm caused to the setting of these buildings. 
 
The impact on the setting of the Greestone Building should also be considered and 
the removal of the existing 1950s workshop building and the existing bridge will 
cause no harm. The new extension has been designed in such a way that it does not 
compete with the special architectural interest of the Greestone Building and the use 
of natural stone provides a suitable locationally referenced contrast to the brick and 
terracotta ornamentation of the main building. The mass of the new extension is 
dealt with carefully in the manner in which it is modelled  and the overall result is a 
building that respects its context and does not cause harm to the setting of the 
Greestone Building. 
 
The Close Wall, which runs east west through the application site, separating the 
Greestone Building to its south from the 1950s workshop and site of the proposed 
new extension to the north, has been significantly altered during the latter part of the 
20th century and is faced with artificial stone for much of its length within the site. It is 
an important feature as much of it survives beyond the application site and it 
provides a clear definition of the Cathedral Close. The connecting bridge from the 
Greestone building to the new extension spans the wall without touching it, as does 
the existing bridge, in a manner that acknowledges its importance. The setting of the 
wall will not be significantly changed by the new extension and whilst English 
Heritage has raised a concern about a small part of the extension projecting over the 
Close Wall the enclosure that the Wall provides can still be read very clearly and 

24



 

consequently the projection, if it causes harm to the setting of the Close Wall, 
causes harm that is less than substantial. 
 
The listed structure to the east of the site, Greestone Steps and Arch with adjoining 
Close Wall, are separated from the application site by a high stone wall to the west 
of the steps, north of the arch, and this screens any views of the application site and 
would screen views of the new extension. There is no significant impact on the 
setting of this heritage asset. 
 
Temple Gardens to the west of the application site is a scheduled ancient monument 
and views from here towards the site of the proposed new extension are screened 
by trees and other vegetation. It may be possible to obtain glimpses of the new 
building but these have no significant impact on the setting of the heritage asset. 
  
The NPPF states that “where a development will lead to less than substantial harm 
to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed 
against the public benefits of the proposal.” It is the considered view of your officers 
that the proposal for the new extension will not cause substantial harm to the 
significance of any designated heritage assets; any effects are limited and this 
limited effect should therefore be balanced against the public benefits of the 
investment in the existing buildings on the site and the benefits to Lincoln and 
Lincolnshire of the establishment of the University Technical College. 
 

d) Impact on residential amenity 
 

The existing use of the site as the Arts Faculty of the University brings with it a level 
of activity and noise which is appropriate to the local area and does not cause 
problems in relation to the amenity of local residents. Equally the buildings on the 
site, both the Greestone Building and the workshop extension to the rear are not 
new and have become an accepted part of the character of the local area. 
 
The proposal to develop the UTC has understandably generated concern on the part 
of local residents both in terms of how the site will operate and in terms of the 
construction and appearance of the new extension. Greestone House, on the east 
side of Greestone Place is directly opposite the entrance to the garage court on the 
north side of the application site and would face the new extension and 1 Greestone 
Terrace which faces south also has a bay window within its gable which also faces 
the application site. There are other houses in the vicinity from where it may be 
possible to gain glimpses of the new extension but there would be no particular 
impact on their amenity as a result of the proposals. 
 
The bay window in 1 Greestone Terrace faces the application site and currently has 
an outlook towards the 1950s workshop building. The removal of this building and its 
replacement with the new extension would change the outlook from this window but 
the set back in the upper floor of the building at this point means that the proposal 
will be no more overbearing than the existing building and in some respects the 
outlook south should be marginally improved. There will also be a view of the new 
extension from the garden of 1 Greestone Terrace but the new building is a 
significant improvement in terms its appearance in the view to the north from the 
garden and it will not cause harm to residential amenity. 
 
Greestone House, which is to the north east of the application site has a clear view 
at first floor level of the application site and in particular of the proposed site of the 
new extension. The outlook south from Greestone House will change as a result of 
the new extension and the proposed upper floor will affect and reduce the view from 
these windows. The interface distances mean that there will be no loss of sunlight 
and no overshadowing of Greestone House as a result of the new extension – at its 
closest the upper floor would be over 20 metres away from the facade of Greestone 
House and at something of an angle.  
 

25



 

The effect on the amenity of other dwellings in the vicinity is minimal, the new 
extension will be viewed from the access to Greestone Terrace but these dwellings 
face south and do not face the application site. Equally any impact on the residential 
amenity of Vicars Court is very limited with views of the site from the north being 
screened by the Tithe Barn and also by trees within the grounds of Vicars Court.      

    
e) Construction Access and Management 
 

The access to the Greestone Building takes place from Lindum Road and this will be 
reinforced as part of the UTC proposals. Details of the access arrangements that are 
proposed for the UTC will be dealt with in f) below. However access to the site of the 
new extension for its construction and for the demolition of the existing 1950s 
building cannot be gained from Lindum Road which means the only point of access 
is Greestone Place, which is an adopted highway but also a narrow street serving a 
number of houses and which is not wide enough for some of its length for two 
vehicles to pass. Access for construction is therefore difficult and if it is to be 
undertaken without causing major local issues then it will need to be very carefully 
planned and managed. 
 
The applicants have developed a Construction Management Plan which details the 
following provisions: 
 

• Vehicle sizes kept to a minimum to ensure they can access and manoeuvre 
within the site and the adjacent roads 

• Deliveries to site booked in advance to prevent queuing on adjacent roads – 
when these pre-booked deliveries arrive at the site access control at the 
northern end of Greestone Place they will only be allowed to proceed to the 
site when the gateman, stationed at the site access gate walks up Greestone 
Place to collect the delivery and walks the vehicle to the site. The reverse will 
apply when the vehicle leaves. 

• Any deliveries that can be taken from Lindum Road will do so.  
• Site personnel required to park in public car parks 
• Tool lock up provided so drop off everyday is avoided 
• Build programme based on Monday to Friday working 8.00am to 5.30pm 
• Access routes in and out of the site designated and conveyed to pre-booked 

deliveries 
• The applicant is also investigating the use of a vehicle holding area outside 

the City to aid the just-in-time deliveries 
 
In addition it is proposed that the historic road and footpath surfaces, kerbs, street furniture, 
etc will be surveyed by the Highway Authority and the applicants before any development 
commences and where necessary these parts of the adopted highway will be protected or 
indeed lifted for the duration of the construction period and relaid following the completion 
of the works.   
 
This Construction Management Plan has been developed in conjunction with the Highway 
Authority and the applicants are in no doubt as to the sensitivity of the area immediately 
around the site and understand the need to keep disruption to local residents to an 
absolute minimum. 
 
The Vehicle Frequency Programme produced by the applicant shows that weeks 4 to 14 of 
the construction programme will be the busiest in terms of vehicle movement with weeks 10 
to 13, when it is proposed to remove the excavated material from the area that will form the 
lower ground floor of the new extension having a peak movement of 80-82 vehicles a week 
– an average of approximately 16 vehicles a day. 
 
The Construction Management Plan provides a degree of reassurance that the logistics of 
the construction have been considered and will be considered with regard to the 
surrounding area and the amenity of local residents whilst also providing a detailed and 
realistic estimate of actual vehicle movements. 

26



 

 
f) Travel, traffic and access management following opening of the UTC 

 
The applicant has produced a detailed Travel Plan Framework which has been 
developed in conjunction with advice and comment from the Highway Authority. 
The wide catchment of the school, encompassing the whole of Lincolnshire and 
neighbouring areas such as Newark means that many pupils will arrive and depart 
from the main bus station and railway station which are approximately a ten minute 
walk to the south of the site. Up to 75% of the pupils are expected to travel from 
outside the City and those from Lincolnshire will be eligible for free public transport 
and it is quite likely that those from further afield will also have a similar entitlement.  
The school will not be typical in terms of its catchment and it is likely that a high 
proportion of those pupils travelling form outside the City will use public transport. 
 
However, it is also recognised that some parents may wish to drive and drop their 
children close to the school and it is proposed that a designated drop off area is 
identified to parents which is adjacent to Danesgate House and Crown House to the 
immediate west of the Usher Gallery. Pupils would then be able to walk through 
Temple Gardens or up Lindum Road to the school entrance. There will be no 
provision to drop off at the site with on site parking restricted to a minimum for senior 
members of staff. Staff parking and motorcycle/scooter parking will be provided on 
the Lincoln College site. There will be the provision of cycle parking on the 
application site. 
 
There will be no access to the school premises from the north but concern has been 
raised by residents that parents may seek to drop off their children on Minster Yard 
and the surrounding area. These are public highways but the provision of a 
designated drop off area on Danesgate and the large number of pupils arriving by 
public transport suggests that any ad hoc dropping off in Minster Yard is likely to be 
minimal. The UTC will have a responsibility to continue to monitor these matters as 
the site becomes operational. 
 
There has also been general concern about the potential dropping off of pupils on 
Lindum Road. The Highway Authority has requested that pedestrian barriers, of the 
same design as those used further south on Lindum Road and elsewhere in the 
Conservation Area, are installed on the north side of Lindum Road from Temple 
Gardens to a point north of the entrance to the school and this will be funded by the 
applicants. The barrier has the added benefit that it will discourage pedestrians 
attempting to cross Lindum Road to Lincoln College to the south where parking 
provision will be provided for staff at the UTC. A new central pedestrian refuge will 
be constructed on Lindum Road close to its junction with Cathedral Street and there 
is also the fully controlled crossing to the south of this point at the Lindum 
Road/Broadgate/Monks Road/Silver Street junction. 
 
The Highway Authority is satisfied that with these physical works and the 
implementation of the Travel Plan Framework that the site can operate safely and 
without causing inconvenience to other road users or to surrounding residents. 
 
The detailed Travel Plan Framework also contains details to monitor the situation 
when the UTC opens and to continually update travel information and institute 
changes should problems arise. 
 
g) Protected species survey 
 
The applicant has commissioned a survey of protected species for the site which 
has had an assessment by your officers in discussion with colleagues at the 
Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust. The study shows evidence of bat activity in the area and 
the advice from the LWT and your officers is that provision can be made to 
encourage and accommodate bats in and around the Greestone Building, which has 
more potential for the existence and provision of additional bat roosts. Conditions 

27



 

could also be applied to the Planning Permission and to the separate application for 
Listed Building Consent to require details of the repair methodology for the 
Greestone Building again to ensure provision is made for bat roosts. Paragraph 109 
of the NPPF states that “The planning system should contribute to and enhance the 
natural and local environment by;� minimising impacts on biodiversity and providing 
net gains in biodiversity wherever possible�” 
 

4. Material Public Benefits of the Proposals 
 

The NPPF at paragraph 134, as quoted above, refers to the public benefit of a proposal 
being a consideration to be weighed against any less than substantial harm that it may 
cause to the significance of a designated heritage asset. The assessment provided so far 
has sought to explain that any harm caused by this development to the significance of 
surrounding designated heritage assets is very limited indeed, but nonetheless it would be 
prudent to consider the “public benefits of the proposal.” 
 
The development of a University Technical College in Lincoln would provide the opportunity 
to develop and retain engineering and science focussed young people in the city and in 
wider Lincolnshire. This would be an important foundation to the creation of new 
businesses and the provision of a suitably skilled workforce to existing businesses 
contributing to economic growth.  
 
The utilisation of the Greestone Building by the UTC provides investment in the listed 
building, continuing its educational use in a manner that is subject to strict controls and 
providing a central, sustainable location for the school. The applicant has produced a 
Conservation Management Statement that sets out in detail how the listed building will be 
maintained in the future and this provides comprehensive proposals for investment and 
maintenance that safeguard the building and its setting. 
 
The NPPF at paragraph 19 states that “planning should operate to encourage and not act 
as an impediment to sustainable growth. Therefore significant weight should be placed on 
the need to support economic growth through the planning system.   

The proposal will create leading educational provision and high quality learning 
opportunities and experiences, which are specifically designed to ensure young people 
achieve top grades and develop the key employability and life skills essential for success in 
the world of work. Young people will be fully supported to succeed through employer led 
and employment focussed learning.  

The sponsors for Lincoln UTC; The University of Lincoln and Lincoln College, are 
outstanding providers of education. They are joined in this vision by local employers, the 
public service providers and national and international companies, such as Siemens, who 
have invested in the capacity of the region to drive employment, regeneration and 
prosperity in the coming decades. The emergent pattern of vibrant success has inspired the 
community and triggered a positive response to progressive initiatives that are successfully 
developing the economic well-being of the region. The Lincoln UTC will develop an 
invitation to the young people of the region to join in this partnership and secure their future 
prosperity through education, training and work experience which will identify the next 
generation of employees as skilled, work ready and positive about their prospects and 
those of their community. The UTC offers those students a 7 year journey with progression 
pathways into Further and Higher Education, apprenticeships and employment. The Lincoln 
UTC is built on the solid platform of outstanding achievement by the sponsor organisations 
and local employers; and a total belief in the talents of the young people of Lincoln and its 
surrounding area.  

28



 

The proposal arises out of the aspiration to provide a new type of educational experience 
for young people in Lincoln and beyond. The city offers good transport links via bus and 
train, which will enable students from Scunthorpe, North and North East Lincolnshire, 
Greater Lincolnshire, Newark and the city to access the courses on offer at the UTC. It will 
specialise in Engineering with Core Science and develop as a centre of excellence that 
delivers high quality learning for all, with a particular commitment to achievement in 
mathematics. The UTC will reflect the city’s aspiration for Lincoln to become a regional hub 
for technological innovation and the new engineering applications that are growing out of 
the desire for sustainability. In this way, the UTC will build on the engineering heritage of 
Lincoln and strike a chord with local communities.  

The City of Lincoln has a rich tradition of engineering based industries. Today, the City can 
boast the presence of excellent companies with the global stature of Siemens, together 
with many other large, medium and small size hi-tech businesses. The University has 
recently developed new undergraduate science courses in medical, forensic and computer 
science and the College has a first class track record offering manufacturing engineering 
courses for young people. Both the College and University run successful Apprentice 
schemes and Foundation Degree options for able students capable of undertaking more 
demanding levels of study. Siemens has a regional training centre located in Lincoln city 
centre, close to both the University and college campuses and its facilities will be utilised by 
the UTC to provide training and excellence in manufacturing engineering. 

Conclusion 
 
The public benefits of this proposal in terms of the expansion of educational opportunities 
and employment prospects and the contribution to local industry and commerce together 
with the retention and refurbishment of the existing listed building must be balanced against 
the issues that it raises in terms of design, access, impact on designated heritage assets 
and the effects on residential amenity. The applicants have worked to address the issues 
raised and have satisfactorily demonstrated that these matters can be addressed without 
unacceptable harm to those interests of acknowledged importance. The archaeological 
implications of the new extension are being dealt with and the use of natural stone to clad 
the proposed extension has addressed the potential impact that a brick and cladding 
treatment might otherwise have caused. The Construction Management and the Travel 
Plan and associated highway changes demonstrate a satisfactory methodology for building 
and operating the site and the cumulative effect of these proposals and safeguards means 
that the impact of the school on the amenity of surrounding residents and on the adjacent 
heritage assets will not be harmful.    
 
Application Negotiated Either at Pre-Application or During Process of Application 
 
Yes – pre-application discussions with the applicant and positive and proactive discussion 
and negotiation during the consideration of the application. 
 
Application Determined Within Target Date 
 
Yes. 
 
Recommendation 
 
To GRANT Planning permission with the conditions listed below. 
 

29



 

Conditions 
 

1.) Sample of facing materials to be submitted and approved 
2.) Development to be undertaken in accordance with: 

• The approved Written Scheme of Archaeological Investigation 

• The approved Travel Plan – with suitable review periods 

• The Construction Management Plan 
3.) Highway works to be completed before the building is brought into use as the UTC 
4.) Implementation of Landscaping Scheme. 
5.) No access to the school, when operational, from Greestone Place 
6.) Provision of additional details in the Management Scheme for the Greestone 

building to make provision for bat roosts. 
7.) Details of all hard  landscaping to be submitted and approved 

 
Report by: Development Service Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

31



 

 

32



 

 

33



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

Visual representation viewed from Greestone 
Place  

34



 

 
 
 
 
 

Visual representation from adjacent to Tithe Barn  

35



 

 
 

Visual representation from South 

36



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Visual representation – elevated positioned to 
north-east 

37



 

 
 
 
 
 

Visual representation – elevated position from 
north  

38



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Photomontage representation showing new building 
in Hillside context viewed from Pelham Bridge  

39



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Site sections viewed from the east- note existing 
1950s workshop and garages with dotted outline  

40



 

 
Greestone Building 

 
1950s Workshop extension to be demolished 
 

41



 

 
View south from Greestone Place of workshop 

 
View west from Greestone Place of garages to be demolished and workshop to left. 

42



 

 
View of site from Medieval Bishops Palace 

 
View south west from adjacent to Tithe Barn No. 1 Greestone Terrace. 

43



 

 
View east from garages, Tithe Barn to left, of Greestone House 

 
Greestone Place, from Minster Yard 

44



 

 
Greestone Place, looking south 

 
Greestone Place, looking south, Tithe Barn to right 

45



 

 
Lindum Road, looking north towards site entrance. 

 
View across Lindum Road to Cathedral Street 

46



 

Written Representations 
 

 

47



 

 
 
 
 

48



 

49



 

50



 

51



 

52



 

53



 

54



 

 

55



 

56



 

57



 

58



 

59



 

60



 

61



 

62



 

63



 

64



 

65



 

66



 

67



 

 

68



 

 

69



 

70



 

 

71



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

72



 

 
 
 
 

73



 

74



 

75



 

76



 

77



 

78



 

79



 

80



 

81



 

82



 

83



 

84



 

85



 

86



 

87



 

88



 

89



 

90



 

91



 

92



 

93



 

 

94



 

95



 

 

96



 

97



 

98



 

99



 

100



 

101



 

102



 

103



 

104



 

105



 

106



 

107



 

108



 

109



 

110



 

111



 

112



 

113



 

114



 

115



 

116



 

117



 

118



 

119



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

120



 

 

121



 

122



 

123



 

124



 

 

125



 

126



 

127



 

128



 

129



 

130



 

131



 

132



 

133



 

134



 

135



 

 
 
 
 
 

136



 

137



 

138



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

139



 

From: Nannestad, Donald (City of Lincoln Council)  

Sent: 08 July 2013 08:08 

To: Seddon, Paul (City of Lincoln Council) 

Subject: Greestone Centre Planning application 

Ref Planning application 2013/0391/F & 2013/0378/LBC 

Greestone Centre 

As a ward councillor I wish to make a number of points regarding the planning application for a UTC 

on the site of the Greestone Centre. 

It should be emphasised that I , and the residents I write on behalf of, support a UTC for Lincoln but 

they, and I,  have several issues with the proposed site. These include the design of the building; 

the suitability of the site;  access for construction traffic. 

1. Design 

The site is one of the most sensitive areas of the city being in a conservation area and very close to 

Lincoln Cathedral. The designs put forward are not, to my mind,  of a sufficient high enough quality 

to match the area.  I also agree with the comments made by Lincoln Civic Trust about the 

unsuitability of the proposed materials and the proposed flat roof.  Any building of this scale will be 

visible from a considerable distance and should not detract from the Cathedral. Any design should 

also fit in with the existing Greestone building. It should be noted that the existing construction 

(built in 1893 as the Girls’ High School and extended in 1911) was designed by William Watkins who 

is an important Lincoln architect. Watkins himself  “considered this building to be one of his best 

works” (source The Victorian Facade. W.Watkins and Son 1859-1918 published 1990 by 

Lincolnshire College of Art & Design). 

2. Suitability of the site 

 The proposed new build is in an area that has suffered landslips and there is considerable concern 

amongst residents that construction work will generate further landslips. In addition the access to 

this building is limited. Life has changed since this was used as a school. Children do not, as a 

matter of course, walk to school as they did in the 1960s and 1970s.  Many are taken by car (or in 

the case of sixth formers drive in their own cars). One only has to visit any school to see the chaotic 

effect. The UTC advertises itself as a regional college. This means students not only from Lincoln 

but from much further afield. The proposed bus drop-off point at the current Lincoln College site is 

to be welcomed but further conditions need to be added to ensure that significant numbers of 

students do not arrive by car.  

3.  Access for construction traffic.  

Given the volume of construction traffic needed to effect the proposed demolition work and the 

subsequent delivery of materials to the site the proposed access via Greestone Stairs is a major 

problem. There is significant prospect of damage to the adjoining historic houses and the cobbled 

roadway. The access is not suitable for heavy vehicles of any sort and an alternative access should 

be sought. However, if this is to be the access then there needs to be a physical presence 

controlling traffic in and out of the site throughout the time work is taking place. In addition there 

needs to be a weight restriction on vehicles entering the site from Greestone Stairs. Construction 

works should be limited to, for example 8.30 am to 5 pm Monday to Friday. Anything more is likely 

to leave residents as, in effect, prisoners in their own homes throughout the construction work. 

Residents must be allowed access to their homes at all times. Further, if Greestone Stairs is to be 

the access for construction traffic, then construction work should be suspended for the period of 

the Christmas Market. Any construction management plan should be published so that it is 

available for the public to read and copies should be issued to the residents . 
Cllr Donald Nannestad 

 
 

140



 

Adam  Hanlon 
6 Gresham Street 
Lincoln 
louise@blacksmithsyard.plus.com 
 
I have serious concerns about a lack-lustre building being placed between a grade 2 listed 
school building and a grade 1 listed thythe barn.  The plans and mock-ups show what is no 
better than a 1960s office block fronted by, I assume, replacements for the existing 
garages, themselves highly detrimental to the area. 
 
The building might fit in well on the university campus, but is completely out of character in 
the Greestone Steps area/Cathedral quarter of the city. 
 

141



142

This page is intentionally blank.



 

Site: Greestone Centre, Lindum Road, Lincoln, LN2 1PF 

Application No: 2013/0378/LBC 

Target Date:   

Agent: John Roberts Architects Ltd. 

Applicant: Mr Simon Plummer 

Development:  Demolition of existing workshop and link bridge, installation of 
new link bridge at first floor level to new 2 and 3 storey building. 
Installation of new glazed screen at lower ground floor to form 
corridor and installation of internal passenger lift with associated 
internal and external alterations and repairs to facilitate a 
University Technical College. (Listed Building Consent) 

 
Background 
 
This application for listed building consent relates to the wider proposal to establish a new 
University Technical College at the Greestone Centre on Lindum Road. There are 
associated applications for planning permission and Conservation Area Consent. 
 
The Greestone Building, which faces Lindum Road is listed Grade II and this application 
deals with the alterations that are proposed to be made to the building. The applicants have 
produced a detailed Conservation Management Statement in support of their proposals for 
the building. 
 
The works for which consent are sought are as follows: 
 

• Installation of new platform lift 

• Removal of existing link bridge, making good opening and formation of new opening 
for new link bridge 

• Installation of glazed screen to south elevation 

• Removal of internal partitions and making good 

• Installation of new toilets 

• Repair and maintenance of the external envelope 
 
Site Visit 
 
Undertaken on 20th June 2013. 
 
Issues 
 
The building is listed and so the issue is to ensure that the alterations proposed are 
appropriate to and do not cause harm to the architectural and significance of the building. 
 
Policies Referred to 
 
NPPF paras 128, 129, 131 and 134. 
 
Consultations 
 
Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community 
Involvement, adopted June 2006. 
 

Item No. 4b

143



 

Responses 
 
These letters are copied as part of the report for planning permission.  
 
The Dean and Chapter of Lincoln Chapter Office 

4 Priory Gate 
Lincoln 
LN2 1PL 

Support 

Mr & Mrs Andrews 3 Vicars Court 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN2 1PT 

Objection 

Dr Peter Burman 39/1F Drummond Place 
Edinburgh  
EH3 6NR  

Objection 

Professor Mary Stuart  University Of Lincoln 
Brayford Pool  
Lincoln 
LN6 7TS 

Support 

Professor Andrew Hunter University Of Lincoln 
Brayford Pool 
Lincoln 
LN6 7TS 

Support 

The Lord Cormack  15 Minster Yard 
Lincoln 
LN2 1PW 

Objection 

Richard Lucas 14 James Street 
Lincoln 
LN2 1QE 

Objection 

English Heritage East Midlands Region 
44 Derngate 
Northampton 
NN1 1UH 

Comment 

Revd Canon John Patrick  Lincoln Cathedral  
The Subdeanery  
18 Minster Yard  
Lincoln 
LN2 1PX 

Comments 

 
Consideration 
 
This application for listed building consent is accompanied by a detailed Conservation 
Management Statement that contains within it an assessment of the significance of the 
building. The alterations that are proposed take account of the level of significance 
identified in the statement and the elements of repair and maintenance will arrest elements 
of decline in the external fabric. 
 
The installation of the lift is located in such a manner that it has very little impact on the 
building but will allow access to all floors helping to facilitate the new use and thereby 
contribute to the investment in the building helping to preserve it. It will be situated within a 
smaller room off the main hall, adjacent to the location for the proposed new kitchen. 
 

144



 

The removal of the existing link bridge will necessitate the opening in the first floor north 
elevation being made good, a replica window and wall detailing being used to infill the 
opening. The new opening, situated slightly further west along the north elevation, involves 
the removal of part of the existing fabric but provided that this work is carried out in 
accordance with the principles set out in the Conservation Management Statement then the 
effect on the listed building could not be considered to be substantial. The bridge facilitates 
access to the proposed new extension to the north and connects the UTC buildings 
together, making them accessible. 
 
The glazed screen proposed on the south elevation is to infill an arched opening in that part 
of the building, allowing an enclosed connection to be made to the western part of the 
building. The works are minimal and constitute an addition and do not cause harm to the 
building.  
 
The various internal partitions that are proposed for removal, in existing classrooms and 
also to the gallery above the main hall, take out some of the subdivision of the original 
spaces and constitute a significant benefit to the appearance and significance of the 
building as it was originally designed. Equally, those areas where new partitions are 
proposed are quite limited and do not cause unacceptable harm to the fabric of the 
building. 
 
The locations of the toilets proposed at the lower and upper ground floors replace existing 
provision whilst the new toilets at the first floor are located in a secondary area that is of 
less significance.  
 
The various repair and maintenance proposals for the external envelope of the building are 
set out in the submitted drawings and in the Conservation Management Statement. These 
works ensure that the building remains wind and watertight and repair some damage that 
has taken place over recent years. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The works that are proposed to the building take account of its significance and are 
appropriate to the building. The Conservation Management Statement provides a solid 
basis for the consideration of future work. 
 
Application Negotiated either at Pre-Application or During Process of Application 
 
Yes. 
 
Application Determined within Target Date 
 
Yes.  
 
Recommendation 
 
That Listed Building Consent is granted for the works as proposed. 
 
Conditions 
 

1. Works to commence within 3 years 

145



 

2. All works to be undertaken in accordance with the principles set out in the 
Conservation Management Statement. 

 
 
Report by: Development Service Manager 

146



 

Site: Vicars Court Garages, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LN2 1PT 

Application No: 2013/0425/CAC 

Target Date:   

Agent: John Roberts Architects Ltd. 

Applicant: Mr Simon Plummer 

Development:  Demolition of garages and boundary wall 
(Conservation Area Consent) 

 
Background 
 
This application for Conservation Area Consent proposes to demolish a block 
of garages adjacent to the site of the proposed University Technical College 
at Greestone Place/Lindum Road. There are associated applications for 
planning permission and listed building consent for the works to the 
Greestone centre to provide the level of accommodation necessary for the 
UTC including the redevelopment of the building to the immediate south of the 
garages, a 1950s workshop, and the erection of a two and three storey 
building in its place. Access to the site for demolition, excavation and 
construction is very constrained and so it is proposed that the garages 
adjacent, which are the subject of this application, are to be demolished to 
facilitate access and then they will subsequently be rebuilt. In addition, a 
section of the boundary wall to Greestone Place and at the entrance to the 
garages is proposed to be demolished, again to facilitate access during the 
development. The wall would then be replaced following completion of the 
building on the site. 
 
The garages are owned and leased by the Dean and Chapter and the 
applicant has had to make a separate application to the Cathedrals Fabric 
Commission for England (CFCE) for the demolition of the garages. The 
proposal for demolition has been approved by the CFCE, subject to a 
condition relating to the methodology for recording the works. This is an 
entirely separate process from the consideration of the application for 
Conservation Area Consent that is before the Council.  
 
Site Visit 
 
Undertaken on 20th June 2013. 
 
Issues 
 
The issue to be considered is the value to the Conservation Area of the 
existing garages and boundary walls and whether their demolition and 
replacement can be satisfactorily controlled to ensure that unacceptable harm 
is not caused to the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. 
 
Policies Referred to 
 
NPPF – Chapter 12. Para’s: 131, 134, 135, 136. 
 

Item No. 4c

147



 

Consultations 
 
Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of 
Community Involvement, adopted June 2006. 
 
Responses 
 
The Dean and Chapter of Lincoln Chapter Office 

4 Priory Gate 
Lincoln 
LN2 1PL 

Comments 

P.N Dixon 2 Vicars Court 
Lincoln 
LN2 1PT  

Objection 

Lincoln Civic Trust St Mary’s Guildhall 
385 High Street 
Lincoln 
LN5 7RY 

No objections 

Revd Canon John Patrick Lincoln Cathedral  
The Subdeanery  
18 Minster Yard  
Lincoln 
LN2 1PX 

Comments 

 
Consideration 
 
The demolition of the garages does not cause harm to the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area, nor does it cause harm to the setting of 
the surrounding designated heritage assets. The garages are of no 
architectural or historic merit.  
The demolition of the boundary wall, which is not listed but is nonetheless a 
component in the make up of the character of this part of the Conservation 
Area, is proposed to be undertaken in accordance with a Method Statement 
submitted as part of the application. This Method Statement sets out how the 
wall is to be recorded, taken down, the material stored and then how the wall 
is to be rebuilt. The proposals have been the subject of consultation with the 
Heritage Officer and subject to the works being carried out in accordance with 
the Method Statement there is no objection to what is proposed.  
The demolition works will necessitate vehicles using Greestone Place and in 
order to ensure that this is done safely and with minimum disruption to local 
residents then the works should be undertaken in strict accordance with the 
Construction Management Plan prepared for the new development – it also 
applies to the demolition works. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The works proposed will facilitate access to the development of the new 
extension building for the UTC and will not cause harm to designated heritage 
assets or to the character and appearance of the Conservation Area, subject 
to the appropriate conditions. 

148



 

 
Application Negotiated either at Pre-Application or During Process of 
Application 
 
Yes. 
 
Application Determined within Target Date 
 
No. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That Conservation Area Consent is GRANTED subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

• Works to take place within 3 years 

• All works to be undertaken in strict accordance with the Method 
Statement 

• No demolition to be undertaken until the applicant has provided 
unequivocal details to the Local Planning Authority that a contract has 
been let for the development works at the UTC and that those works 
are programmed to start within 4 weeks of the demolition taking place. 
Reason: to ensure that the demolition is necessary and to ensure that 
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area is not put at 
risk. 

• All demolition works to be undertaken in accordance with the 
Construction Management Plan. 

 
 
Report by: Development Service Manager 

149



150

This page is intentionally blank.



 

Site: Land Adjacent to Park View, St Botolph's Crescent, Lincoln, LN5 
8BJ 

Application No: 2013/0414/F 

Target Date: 23rd July 2013 

Agent: John Halton Design Ltd. 

Applicant: Mr S Grace 

Development:  Erection of 11 three storey dwellings and 3 two storey dwellings. 

 
Background 
The application is for the erection of 11 three storey dwellings and 3 two storey dwelling (14 
dwellings total). The application site is land situated within Park View located on St 
Botolph’s Crescent to the west of High Street, and is accessed via either Robey Street, via 
Bell Street, or Henley Street which connects it to the High Street. 
 
Park View is a large two storey building which occupies a significant plot, and although set 
back slightly from the back edge of footpath maintains a significant presence to the Street. 
The site is made up of the sub-division of the substantial rear grounds of Park View.  The 
remainder of the street is made up of two and predominantly three storey residential flats, 
including St Botolph’s Court which extends back from High Street.  
 
A site notice was displayed on St Botolph’s Crescent on 20th June 2013. 
 
A request for the application to be considered by Planning Committee has been received 
from both Councillor Hills and Councillor Hewson.  
 
Site Visit 
 
Undertaken on 20th June 2013.   
 
Issues 
 
To assess the proposal with regard to: 
 

• Local and national planning policy 

• Residential amenity 

• Design and visual amenity 

• Flood Risk 

• Highway safety 

• Other matters 
 
Policies Referred to 
 
City of Lincoln Local Plan  
Policy 34: Design and Amenity Standards 
Policy 56A: New Housing 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
Chapter 1: Delivering sustainable development 
Chapter 4: Promoting sustainable transport 
Chapter 6: Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes 
Chapter 7: Requiring Good Design 

Item No. 4d

151



 

 
Consultations 
 
Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community 
Involvement, adopted June 2006. 
 
Responses 
 
   
Highways & 
Planning 

Lincolnshire County Council Comments 
 
 

Environment 
Agency 

Waterside House  
Waterside North  
Lincoln  
LN2 5HA 
 

Comment 

Steve Mason Strategic Planning and Major Developments 
Manager - Education 
Lincolnshire County Council 
 

Comments 

Ken Pratt Engineer to Board 
Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board 
J1 The Point, 
Weaver Road, 
Lincoln. 
LN6 3QN 
 

Objection 

Lincoln Civic Trust St Mary’s Guildhall 
385 High Street 
Lincoln 
LN5 7RY 
 

No 
objections 

Emma Stickley 112 St Botolph's Crescent 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN5 8BJ 
 

Objection 

Mrs B J Love 4 St Botolph's Crescent 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN5 8AZ 
 

Objection 

Sandra Holmes 5 Crane Grove 
Lincoln 
LN6 7SN 
 

Comments 
 

Marie Robinson 27 St Botolph's Crescent 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN5 8AZ 
 

Objection 

 

152



 

Consideration 
 
Policy 56A from the City of Lincoln Local Plan cites that new housing is appropriate within 
areas allocated as residential on the proposals map. The site is within a residential area 
and the principle of its development is therefore supported by this local policy. 
 
Policy 34 indicates that planning permission will be granted for new buildings as long as they 
meet the following requirements: 
 

• the scale, massing, height, design, external appearance and facing materials to be 
used in the development must complement the architectural style and townscape 
character of the locality; 

• the siting and layout of any new building or extension must ensure a satisfactory 
physical and functional relationship to adjoining buildings and streetscape; 

• the amenities which occupiers of neighbouring properties may reasonably expect to 
enjoy must not be harmed by, or as a result of, the development. 

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) outlines the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development, whilst the Housing chapter states the Government’s key 
objective is to significantly increase the delivery of new homes. It also states that 
development should respond to local character and history and reflect the identity of local 
surroundings and materials while not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation. 
The NPPF goes on to state that ‘great weight should be given to outstanding or innovative 
designs which help raise the standard of design more generally in the area’ (para 63) and 
that there should be a mix of housing opportunities available to residents.  
 
I consider that the application represents an effective and efficient use of land, providing a 
mix of two and three storey development on the site, which reflects the scale of other 
buildings surrounding the site. The proposed dwellings would provide much needed 
housing in a sustainable location in the City.  Subject to the consideration of other material 
matters, I am satisfied that the principle of the proposal is in accordance with both local and 
national planning policy. 
 
Residential Amenity 
 
The application is split into two development blocks which would front the North and South 
of the West side of St Botolph’s Crescent.  A block of 11 three storey dwellings which would 
front South of St Botolph’s Crescent (plots 1-11) and a block of 3 two storey dwellings 
which would front North of St Botolph’s Crescent (plots 12-14).  
 
Plots 1- 11 
 
At its closest the proposed block of 11 dwellings would be located 9 metres from the front 
elevation of Numbers 31, 32, 33, 34, 35 and 36 St Botolph’s Crescent, these properties are 
located within a block of three storey flats on the opposite side of the road (St Botolph’s 
Crescent) to the proposed development.  The interface distance and relationship between 
the proposed and existing building is not uncommon in urban settings such as this 
examples of which can be seen on many of the streets located off the High Street. Given 
the proposed developments orientation to the North of the existing dwellings, I do not 
consider there would be any issues of loss of light. I am therefore satisfied that the 
development would have an acceptable relationship with these properties.  
 

153



 

The side elevation of Plot 11 would be located 5.2 metres from the rear elevation of Park 
View.  The boundary is defined by a 1.8 metre high close boarded fence. The proposed 
elevation facing this property is blank I therefore do not consider there would be any issues 
of overlooking from the proposed building. The interface distance and relationship between 
the proposed and existing building whilst not ideal is not uncommon in an urban context 
such as this. Given the property’s orientation to the north west, I consider loss of light will 
only be apparent in the late evening to first floor and above living accommodation and 
would therefore not warrant refusal of this application. 
 
The corner of the side/rear elevation of Plot 1 would be located 4.9 metres from the front 
elevation of the three storey building containing 71, 73 and 75 St Botolph’s Crescent.  The 
rear elevation of the proposed building would not project beyond the front elevation of the 
existing building therefore there would be no issues of overlooking or loss of privacy to 
these dwellings. The windows within the east elevation of the existing building have the 
potential for a degree of overlooking to the rear gardens of the proposed dwellings, this is 
commonly found in many housing developments across the city and therefore I am satisfied 
this relationship is acceptable. The proposed dwellings would be located to the east of the 
building and they would not project beyond the front elevation I therefore do not consider 
there would be any issues of loss of light.   
 
The rear elevation of the proposed development would be located 21.6 metres from the 
rear elevation of the proposed rear elevation of the block of three dwellings. This interface 
distance is beyond the minimum distance that is generally recognised as being acceptable, 
21 metres window to window, I therefore consider this distance sufficient to be acceptable 
in terms of privacy and amenity.  
 
Plots 12-14 
 
The proposed block of 3 dwellings would sit 11.3 metres from the front elevation of 
Numbers 1-6 St Botolph’s Crescent; these properties are located within a block of three 
storey flats on the opposite side of the road to the proposed development. This relationship 
is not uncommon in an urban context such as this and I am satisfied this relationship is 
acceptable.  
 
The side elevation of the Plot 12 would be located 8 metres from the side elevation of 
numbers 105, 108 and 111 St Botolph’s Crescent. The boundary is defined by an 
approximately 1.8 metre high timber fence. The side elevation of this property is blank I 
therefore do not consider there would be any issues of overlooking or loss of privacy.   
There is a footpath and an area of open space between the existing fence and the 
elevation containing No. 105, 108 and 111, this area would not be affected by the proposed 
development. Given this relationship and the separation distance I do not consider the 
buildings would appear overbearing to the residents of these dwellings. The buildings 
would be orientated to the east of the existing building loss of light would only be apparent 
in the early morning to the first floor and above living accommodation and would therefore 
not warrant refusal of this application 
 
The side elevation of Plot 12 would be located 4.5 metres from the side elevation of 
numbers 106, 109 and 112 St Botolph’s Crescent. There is a window located on each floor 
in the centre of the elevation.  The side elevation of Plot 12 would not project as far the 
proposed windows I therefore do not consider there would be any issues of the dwelling 
appearing as an overbearing structure or loss of light.   A letter of objection has been 
received from the occupants of 112 St Botolph’s Crescent regarding loss of privacy, loss of 

154



 

light and the loss of green space for the occupants of this property and other neighbouring 
properties.  For the reasons stated above I do not consider the development would have a 
detrimental impact on No. 112, and the effect on other surrounding properties has been 
considered in turn in this report. The site is not allocated as a wildlife habitat or green space 
but the applicants have included a comprehensive landscaping scheme for the site.  
  
The side elevation of Plot 14 at it closest would be located 1.7 metres from the side 
elevation of Park View, this distance increases to 4.5 metres as the proposed dwellings are 
angled away from the existing building.  The boundary is defined by a 1.8 metre high close 
boarded fence. Given the proposed dwellings are two storey and are angled away from the 
side elevation of Park View I do not consider they would appear overbearing. The proposed 
elevation facing Park View is blank I therefore do not consider there would be any issues of 
overlooking from the proposed building. Given the property’s orientation to the north west, I 
consider loss of light will only be apparent in the late evening to the first floor living 
accommodation and would therefore not warrant refusal of this application. 
 
1A-1B St Botolph’s Crescent are located on the opposite side of the road to the proposed 
development and would be located 10.8 metres from Plot 12. The corner of the new 
development would be level with the corner of these two dwellings, given this relationship; I 
do not consider there would be any harm caused to the residential amenity of these 
dwellings. 
 
The rear elevation of the proposed development would be located 21.6 metres from the 
rear elevation of the proposed block of eleven dwellings. This interface distance is beyond 
the minimum distance that is generally recognised as being acceptable, 21 metres window 
to window, I therefore consider this distance sufficient to be acceptable in terms of privacy 
and amenity. 
 
A letter of concern has been received from the occupant of 27 St Botolph’s Crescent 
regarding the use of the dwellings. The application is for Use Class C3 Residential 
dwellings which would be family accommodation.  
 
Impact on Visual Amenity 
 
The area is described within the Lincoln Townscape Assessment character area statement 
for this area, ‘Witham to High Street’. This states that the key townscape characteristics 
include high density, residential buildings, in what is described as ‘a quiet environment’ with 
good enclosure and limited public/private open space.  
 
St Botolph’s Crescent is a typical example of this character, with high density residential 
flats, however does contain allotments and deep grass verges, as well as the expanse of 
landscaped areas around the site. 
 
The proposal would be a stand alone contemporary development whilst relating in scale to 
the established character of the street. I consider the proposal would provide enclosure and 
interest to St Botolph’s Crescent utilising a currently vacant site which would enhance the 
character and appearance of the street and the wider area. 
 
Whilst the proposal is located within an urban context, provision has been made to ensure 
that each property would have garden space to the front and rear. The large sycamore tree 
to the centre of the site has been retained and made into an interesting feature which 

155



 

complements the cotemporary design of the development.  Where possible trees have 
been retained on site and a landscaping scheme has been included within the application.  
 
Flood Risk 
Application of the Sequential Test 
 
In essence, the Sequential Test requires an assessment of whether there are other, 
reasonably available sites which could accommodate the proposed development which are 
at lower risk of flooding. It is important to note that the Sequential Test does not specifically 
mean that sites such as this cannot be developed, rather that sites at less risk should be 
developed first.  
 
Members will be aware that a significant proportion of the existing residential development 
within the City is located within areas at high risk of flooding, and therefore to rigidly apply 
the sequential test would effectively render large parts of the City unsuitable for further 
residential development. In this context, it is necessary to examine housing needs within 
the City and the Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA) outlines a 
shortfall in the supply of deliverable housing land. Given the significant proportion of the 
City which is deemed to be at risk of flooding, to rigidly apply the Sequential Test would 
undermine the ability of the City to meet its strategic housing need by further restricting 
available, developable land. This approach would therefore undermine the wider strategic 
objectives of the NPPF in ensuring there are enough deliverable sites to meet wider 
housing needs.  
 
The Local Planning Authority therefore takes a positive, proactive and pragmatic approach 
to the application of the Sequential Test. Specifically in relation to this site, whilst there may 
be other available sites less prone to flood risk, I am satisfied it is in a sustainable location 
in an established residential area in proximity to goods, services and sustainable methods 
of transport, and would support the wider needs of the community through the addition to 
the net provision of housing across the City.  
 
This site is available for development now, is sustainable and would contribute to the 
housing stock within the City at a time when the number of deliverable sites falls well short 
of what is required. Accordingly, I am satisfied that the Sequential Test is passed.  
 
The Exception Test 
 
The next step is to assess the proposal in relation to the Exception Test, and this requires 
the development to provide wider sustainability benefits to the community that outweigh the 
flood risk, whilst a site specific FRA should demonstrate the proposal would be safe and 
not increase the risk of flooding elsewhere. In relation to the first element, it has been 
demonstrated that this property provides a valuable contribution, to additional housing in a 
sustainable location within the principle urban area, and as such has a wider benefit to the 
community as a whole.  
 
Specifically in terms of safety the application is accompanied by a site specific Flood Risk 
Assessment (FRA) which demonstrates that the proposal is safe in terms of flood risk and 
would not increase the risk of flooding elsewhere. The floor level of the living 
accommodation would be raised to ensure that this would be set 300mm above the likely 1 
in 100 year flood level. In addition, the submitted FRA outlines other mitigation measures in 
relation to the construction method which ensure the property is both flood resilient and 
flood resistant.  

156



 

 
The Environment Agency has assessed the proposal and has raised no objections; subject 
to the development being carried out in accordance with the FRA which would be a 
condition of this consent should you be minded to approve the application. The Upper 
Witham Internal Drainage Board are objecting on the principle of the development being 
within a flood zone, however, for the reasons stated above I am satisfied that the 
development would be safe and that the benefits of the development have been 
demonstrated to pass both the sequential and exception tests.   
 
There has been a detailed Surface Water Drainage scheme prepared by the agents this is 
subject to on site testing and the final details can be included as a condition of a planning 
permission should you be minded to approve the development.   
 
I am therefore satisfied that both elements of the Exception Test are also passed. The 
NPPF goes on to state that where the both tests are passed, it should be ensured that the 
development is flood resilient and resistant. The FRA outlined measures to ensure the 
construction is both resilient and resistant to flooding, whilst the surface water drainage 
scheme would be a condition of any consent should this be approved.  
 
Highway Safety and Parking 
 
Many of the objections state that the proposal would exacerbate existing parking, access 
and highway safety issues. St Botolph’s Crescent is a narrow street and with parking 
prevalent along it this does present issues with visibility and access, and the objectors 
argue that the development would cause increased parking on street and exacerbate this 
situation.  
 
Whilst it is acknowledged there is an existing problem, the key issue is whether the use 
proposed would exacerbate this, in terms of both an increased requirement for on street 
parking as well as an increase in traffic in and around the area. The site lies within an 
established residential area, within walking distance to the City centre and local amenities. 
Car ownership is not considered essential in this area. In any case each property would 
have its own allocated car parking space.   
 
Chapter 4: Promoting sustainable transport states that ‘decisions should ensure 
developments areK.located where the need to travel will be minimised and the use of 
sustainable transport modes can be maximised’ (para 34).  
 
The Highway Authority does not consider that the proposal would cause additional harm to 
highway safety in the locality and have raised no issue with the parking proposed. I am 
therefore satisfied that the development would not cause harm in relation to highway 
safety. 
 
Other Matters 
 
The Education Authority has requested a contribution towards schools and provision of 
education in the locality which would be subject to a legal agreement (Section 106 
Agreement).  A contribution for play and amenity space has also been agreed for the site.  
 
Given the proximity to existing residential properties it is considered necessary to restrict 
the working time on site be conditioned between the hours of 7.30am to 6.30pm Monday to 
Saturday and no work on site on Sundays or Bank Holidays. A letter of objection from 4 St 

157



 

Botolph’s Crescent raises working hours as a concern; I consider the above condition 
properly monitored would overcome these concerns.  
 
I also consider it necessary to remove permitted development from all of the proposed 
dwellings given the proximity to the neighbouring dwellings, so that any future development 
can be appropriately assessed in the context of the site and its surroundings. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Subject to the signing of a Section 106 agreement requiring the appropriate open space 
and education contribution the proposal will not cause unacceptable harm to amenity of 
surrounding residential properties. The proposal would enhance the character and 
appearance of the area and therefore is in accordance with Policies 56A and 34 of the City 
of Lincoln Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
The applicant is required to enter into a S106 legal agreement to secure a contribution 
towards plan and amenity space elsewhere in the area, and a contribution towards 
education in the local area.  
 
Legal Implications 
 
The applicant is required to enter into a S106 legal agreement to secure a contribution 
towards plan and amenity space elsewhere in the area, and a contribution towards 
education in the local area.  
 
Application Negotiated Either at Pre-Application or During Process of Application 
 
Yes – During processing of application. 
 
Equality Implications 
 
None. 
 
Application Determined Within Target Date 
 
No.  If no, the reason for this was negotiation on various aspects of the development has 
been required.  
 
Recommendation 
 
That authority to GRANT CONDITIONALLY planning permission is delegated to the 
Development Service Manager subject to the satisfactory conclusion of the Section 106 
Agreement. 
 
Conditions 
 
Standard Conditions 
 
1. Commencement within 3 years 
2. Development to be built in accordance with the approved plans. 

158



 

 
Non- Standard Conditions 
 
3. Archaeology- Submission of a written scheme of investigation  
4. Samples of Materials  
5. Details of tree protection methods 
6. Final details of surface water drainage 
7. Implementation of landscaping scheme 
8. Hours of work 
9. Development to proceed in accordance with the approved flood risk assessment 
(wording as recommended by the Environment Agency) 
10. Reporting of any contaminated land 
11. Removal of permitted development  
 
Report by: Development Service Manager 

159



 

Application drawings 
 
Site location and proposed site layout plan 
 
 

160



 

3-D Image showing Plots 1-11 
 

 
 
3-D Image showing Plots 12-14 

 
  
2-D Elevations and Floor Plans 

 
 

161



 

 
 

 

162



 

 
 

 

 

163



 

Photographs of site 
 
 

 
 

Large sycamore tree to be retained on site 
 

164



 

 
View of the rear elevation of Park View from within the site 

 
View of the rear elevation of Park View from within the site 
 

165



 

 
Side elevation of 71, 73 and 75 St Botolph’s Crescent from within the site 

 
View west to east of St Botolph’s Crescent (location of plots 1-11) 

166



 

 
View from within the site of 31-36 St Botolph’s Crescent 

 
Looking east to west (plots 1-11) 

167



 

 
View from within the site of proposed location of plots 12-14 

 
View from St Botolph’s Crescent of proposed location of plots 12-14.

168



 

Letters from Neighbouring Residents 
 
 
 

 

169



 

 
Comments for reference number 2013/0414/F 
Objection to planning permission in St Botolphs Crescent 
Objection based on the following points: 

1. Danger of overcrowded narrow road 
2. Loss of privacy for existing residents 
3. loss of light, especially in Winter 
4. Loss of green space and habitats 
5. Provisions for 14 cars is not sufficient most families will have more than once vehicle.  This will lead 
to more cars 

 

 
 

170



 

 

 

171



 

 
 
 

172



 

Letter from Lincolnshire County Council - Education 

 
 

173



 

 

174



 

Letter from Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board 
 
2013/0414/F - Land adjacent to Park View, St Botolph's Crescent, Lincoln 
 
The Board Objects in principle to any development in flood plain (Zones 2 and 3) because of the potential of 
increased flood risk to existing property and land, because of the loss of volume within the flood plain and 
increased run off. 
 
It is up to City of Lincoln Council as the planning Authority to grant planning permission and determine 
whether any new development is appropriate and has any detrimental effect on any existing property or 
infrastructure. 
 
This area of Lincoln is behind a flood wall and the River Witham regularly flows higher than the ground levels 
behind. The drainage of this area is by Anglian Water surface water sewers some of which are gravity with 
flaps to prevent back flow from the river and there are also a number of pumps. This site I believe does 
benefit from a pumped system, but I do not know what standard of protection it provides or its condition or if it 
has spare capacity. 
 
The Board does not require any further information. 
 
Letter from Environment Agency 
 

Erection of 14 new dwellings consisting of one block of 11 terraced houses and one block of 
three terraced houses    
St Botolph's Crescent, Lincoln, LN5 8BJ       
 
Thank you for referring the above application received on 20 May 2013. 
 
 Environment Agency position 
Having assessed the Flood Risk Assessment we can confirm that the proposed development is 
acceptable. We request that the following condition is attached to any planning permission granted. 
 
Condition 
The development permitted by this planning permission shall only be carried out in accordance with 
the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA)  dated April 2013. Specifically finished floor levels are 
set no lower than 6.13 m above Ordnance Datum (AOD). 
 
The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation, or within any other period 
as may subsequently be agreed, in writing, by the local planning authority. 
 
Reason 
To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future occupants. 
 
Please note that our advice has not considered the risk of flooding from ground water, drainage 
systems, reservoirs, canals or ordinary watercourses. Your Authority will therefore need to be 
satisfied that the proposed development is also in accordance with other flood risk requirements of 
the National Planning Policy Framework.   
 
Additionally, it is for the local planning authority to determine whether or not there are other sites 
available at lower flood risk as required by the Sequential Test in the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 

 

175



176

This page is intentionally blank.


	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes - 17 July 2013
	3 Work to Trees in City Council Ownership
	4a Greestone Centre, Lindum Road, Lincoln, LN2 1PF
	4b Greestone Centre, Lindum Road, Lincoln, LN2 1PF (LBC)
	4c Vicars Court Garages, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LN2 1PT (CAC)
	4d Land Adjacent to Park View, St Botolph's Crescent, Lincoln, LN5 8BJ

